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To the Members of GANDHAR OIL REFINERY (INDIA) LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of GANDHAR OIL
REFINERY (INDIA) LIMITED (‘the Company'), having its CIN No. U23200MH1992PLC 068905,
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2023, the Statement of Profit and Loss
(including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement
of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a
summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies
Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the companies
(Indian Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31% March
2023, its Profit and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the
year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the statement in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs)
specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further
described in the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the
Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Other Information

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and
Analysis, Board's Report including Annexures to Board's Report, Business Responsibility Report,
Corporate Governance and Shareholder's Information, but does not include the financial
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Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information: we
are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance.

Responsibilities of Management and Those charged with Governance for the Standalone
Financial Statements

The company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013(“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs (financial position), net profit (financial performance
including Other Comprehensive Income), Changes In Equity and Cash Flows of the company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India including the Ind AS
specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of
the company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate implementation and maintenance of accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, Board of directors is responsible for assessing the
company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors
either intends to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but
to do so.

Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial
statements.




As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive lo those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control. _
 Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness
of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

¢ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

 Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the standalone financial statements of
the company to express an opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Standalone Financial Results that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the Standalone Financial Results may be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in
evaluating the results of our work; and (i) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in
the Standalone Financial Results.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,

and where applicable, related safeguards.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order'), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the
“Annexure A”, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order,
to the extent applicable

2. (A) As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations, which to the
best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

(c) The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other
comprehensive income), the statement of changes in equity and the statement of
cash flows dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of account

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st
March 2023 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on 31st March 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164(2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to the
standalone financial statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness
of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”.

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year
is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

(B) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

(a) The Company has, to the extent ascertainable, disclosed the impact of pending
litigations on its financial position in its financial statements — Refer Note 32 to the
standalone financial statements;

(b) The provision has been made in the standalone financial statement, as required
under the applicable law or accounting standard, for material foreseeable losses,
if any, on long term contracts including derivatives contracts.

(c) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.
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(d)

(e)
(f)

(i) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have
been advanced or loaned or invested by the company to or in any other person(s)
or entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding
that the intermediary shall whether directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner by or on behalf of the company
(Ultimate Beneficiaries) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of
ultimate beneficiaries;

(i) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, no funds have been received by the company from any person(s) or
entities including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”) with the understanding that
such company shall whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons
or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the funding
party (ultimate beneficiaries) or provide guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate beneficiaries.

(iii) Based on such audit procedures as considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe
that the representation under sub-clause (d) (i) and (i) contain any material mis-
statement.

No dividend declared or paid during the year by the company.

Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for maintaining
books of account using accounting software which has a feature of recording
audit trail (edit log) facility is applicable to the Company with effect from April 1,
2023, and accordingly, reporting under Rule 11(g) of Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 is not applicable for the financial year ended March 31,
2023.

For Kailash Chand Jain & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Membeérship No.: 134607
Place: Mumbai
Date: May 24, 2023

UDIN: 23134607BHABLI7806



“Annexure — A” to the Independent Auditors’ Report

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report to the members of GANDHAR OIL REFINERY (INDIA) LIMITED of
even date)

To the best of information and according to the explanation provided to us by the company and
the books of accounts and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state that:

a)

a)

In respect of Company’s Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets:

(A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars,
including quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment and
relevant details of right-of-use asset.

(B) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of
intangible assets.

The company has a program of physical verification of Property, Plant and
Equipment and right-of-use assets at specific interval which, in our opinion is
reasonable having regards to the size of the company and the nature of its
assets. Pursuant to the program certain Property, Plant and Equipment were
physically verified by the management during the year. According to the
information and explanation given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed
on such verification.

Based on our examination of registered sale deed / transfer deed / conveyance
deed, lease agreement provided to us, we report that the title deeds of all the
immovable properties (other than properties where the company is the lessee
and the lease agreements are duly executed in favor of the lessee) disclosed in
the financial statements are held in the name of the company as at the balance
sheet date.

The company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including
Right of Use assets) or intangible assets or both during the year.

No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the company for
holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act,
1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.

Inventories of the company have been physically verified by the management at

regular intervals except in case of inventory lying with third party. In respect to of
inventory lying with third parties, these have been substantially been confirmed by
them. As per the information and explanation provided to us and having regards to
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the size of the company the frequency of verification of inventory is reasonable. The
discrepancies noticed on such verification of inventory as compared to book records
were not material and have been appropriately dealt with the books of accounts.

b) The company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore
rupees, from banks on the basis of security of current assets, According to the
information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records, statements, return, filed by the company to the bank are not in agreement
with the books of accounts of the company and material discrepancies observed,
have been disclosed in foot note (b) of Note 18 to the standalone financial statement.

During the year the company has made investment in, provided guarantee or
security or granted unsecured loans or advances in the nature of loans, to
companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties.

a) During the year the company has provided unsecured loans or advances in the
nature of loans or stood guarantee, details of the same are as under:

(Rs. in Million)
Particulars Guarantees Security Loans Advance in

the nature of

loan
Aggregate amount granted / provided during the year
Subsidiaries NIL NIL NIL NIL
Joint Venture NIL NIL NIL NIL
Associates NIL NIL NIL NIL
Others NIL NIL 40.00 NIL

Balance outstanding at the balance sheet date in the above case

Subsidiaries 1,014.72 NIL NIL NIL
Joint Venture NIL NIL NIL NIL
Associates NIL NIL | NIL NIL

Others NIL NIL 40.00 NIL
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b) The investments made, guarantees provided, security given and the terms and
conditions of the grant of all loans and advances in the nature of loans and
guarantees provided are not prejudicial to the company’s interest;

c) In respect of loans and advances in the nature of loans, the schedule of
repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated and the
repayments or receipts are regular,

d) No amount is overdue for more than ninety days;

e) No loan or advance in the nature of loan granted which has fallen due during the
year, has been renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the over dues of
existing loans given to the same parties;

f) the Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans either
repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment;

The company has complied with the provision of section 185 and 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013 in respect of loan granted, investment made and guarantees
and securities provided, as applicable.

The company has not accepted any deposit or amount which are deemed to be
deposits. Hence, reporting under clause 3(v) is not applicable.

Pursuant to the rule made by the Central Government of India, the company is
required to maintain cost records as specified under Section 148(1) of the Act in
respect of its products. We have broadly reviewed the cost records maintained by
the company. We have, however, not made any detailed examination of the records
with a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete.

a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records, the Company is generally been regular in depositing all
the undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Service tax, Provident fund,
Employees’ State Insurance, income-tax, Sales Tax, duty of Customs, duty of
Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and other material statutory dues applicable to it,
though there has been a slight delay in a few cases with the appropriate authorities..

There were no undisputed amount payable in respect of Goods and Service tax,
Provident fund, Employees’ State Insurance, income-tax, Sales Tax, duty of
Customs, duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and other material statutory dues
were in arrears as at 31 March 2023, for a period of more than six month from the
date they become payable.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our

examination of the records of the company, following are the paMgrs of disputed
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material dues on account of Goods and Service tax, Provident fund, Employees’
State Insurance, income-tax, Sales Tax, duty of Customs, duty of Excise, Value
Added Tax, Cess and other material statutory dues as at March 31, 2023, which
have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any dispute.

Nature of Amount | Period to | Forum where dispute is pending
Dues which the
amount relates

Sales Tax 1.89 | FY 2002-03 The Maharashtra Sales Tax Tribunal

Sales Tax 0.31 | FY 2014-15 Sales Tax Office Bhubaneswar

Sales Tax 7.93 | FY 2011-12 Appellate  Deputy  Commissioner
Visakhapatnam

Sales Tax 12.27 | FY-2012-13 High Court Andhra Pradesh

Entry Tax 2.56 | FY-2012-13 Addl. Commissioner of Commercial
Tax (Appeal)

Custom Duty 281.52 | FY-2012-13 The Customs, Excise & Service Tax
Appellate Tribunal

Custom Duty 6.24 | FY-2012-13 Commissioner of Customs, Central
Excise and Service Tax (Appeals)

Custom Duty 54.29 | FY-2015-16 The CLIStClm.S. Excise & Service Tax
Appellate Tribunal

Custom Duty 33.56 | FY-2015-16 The Customs, Excise & Service Tax
Appellate Tribunal

Custom Duty 24.46 | FY-2015-16 The Customs, Excise & Service Tax
Appellate Tribunal

Custom Duty 7.76 | FY-2017-18 Appellate Authority Customs

Excise Duty 0.99 | FY 2012-13 to | The Commissioner of Central Excise

2016-17 | (Appeals)
Sales Tax 0.58 | FY 2016-17 Joint Commissioner of Sales Tax

(Appeals) Maharashtra |




Viii.
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Sales Tax 0.85 | FY 2016-17 !

Goods and 271 FY: 201718 Central GST & Central Excise, Division
services tax VI, Daman Commissionerate ‘
Sales Tax 0.80 | FY 2017-18 Government Of Andhra Pradesh

Commercial Taxes Department

There were no transaction relating to previously unrecorded income that have been
surrendered of disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessment under
Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).

a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or borrowings or in the
payment of interest thereon to any lender.

b) The company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or any other lender.

c¢) The company has applied the term loans for the purpose for which the loans were
obtained.

d) On an overall examination of the financial statement of the company, fund raised
on short term basis have, prima facie, not been utilized during the year for long term
purposes by the company.

e) The company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or
to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures.

f) The company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held
in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies.

a) The company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public
offer (including debt instruments) during the year and hence, reporting under clause
3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

b) The company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of
shares or convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) during the
year and hence, reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

a) No fraud by the company and no material fraud on the company has been noticed
or reported during the year.

b) During the year no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies
Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.
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¢) No whistle-blower complaints received during the year by the company.
The company is not a nidhi company and hence reporting under clause 3(xii) of the
Order is not applicable to the company.

According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the company is in compliance with sections 177 and
188 of the Companies Act, 2013 with respect to applicable with the related parties
and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the standalone financial
statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

a) The company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with the size
and nature of its business.

b) We have considered, the internal audit reports issued to the company, in
determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedure.

In our opinion during the year the company has not entered into any non-cash
transactions with directors or persons connected with its directors and hence
provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the
Company.

a) In our opinion, the company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of
the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934). Hence, reporting under clause
3(xvi)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order is not applicable.

b) According to the information and explanations provided to us during audit, the
Company does not have any Core Investment Company (CIC) which are part of the
group.

The Company has not incurred any cash losses in the financial year and in the
immediately preceding financial year.

There has not been any resignation of the statutory auditors during the year.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of
financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying
the financial statements, and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and
management plans, and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention which cause us to believe that any
material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that the
company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet
as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date.
We however, state that this is not an assurance as to the further visibility of the
Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of




the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all
liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the date of balance sheet date,
will get discharge by the company as and when they fall due.

xx. According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the company, The company has transferred the
unspent amount towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) on other than
ongoing projects in compliance with second proviso to sub-section (5) of section 135
of the said Act.

For Kailash Chand Jain & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 112318W

Membership No.: 134607
Place: Mumbai

Date: May 24, 2023

UDIN: 23134607BHABLI7806



Annexure - B to the Independent Auditors’ Report

(Referred to in paragraph 1(e) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report to the members of GANDHAR OIL REFINERY (INDIA) LIMITED of even
date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of GANDHAR OIL
REFINERY (INDIA) LIMITED (“the Company”), having its CIN No. U23200MH1992PLC068905 as
of 31st March 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements of the
Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India (ICAI'). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial 1nf0rmat|0n as required under the
Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the
Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAIl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both
applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit
of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone Ind AS financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis

for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial repor,nng ‘r‘j‘:\




Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of
the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material
effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions,
or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at
31st March 2023, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

For Kailash Chand Jain & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registratio

Dipesh
Partner - ~=
Membership No.: 134607
Place: Mumbai

Date: May 24, 2023

UDIN: 23134607BHABLI7806



GANDHAR OIL REFINERY (INDIA) LIMITED

CIN; U23200MH1992PLCO68905
Isn ndalone Balance Shect as at March 31, 2023
(¥ in Million)
Note No. As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
ASSETS
1. Non - current assets .
a. Property, Plant and Equipment 3a 1,072,898 940.36
b. Capital Work-in-progress 3b 725.30 434.81
c. Investment Property e 8.36 8.42
d. Right-of-use assels 3d 170.78 56.13
e. Other Intangible assets Je 5.00 7.04
f. Financial Assets
(i) Investments 4 21.08 2113
(ii) Loans 5 1.91 0.98
(iii} Other Financial Assels 6 623.64 204.04
g. Deferred lax Assels (Net) 17 0.97 -
h. Other Non-current Assels 7 34.67 22.47
Total non-current assets 2,664.60 1,685.38
2, Current assels
a. Inventories 8 278062 2,580.96
b. Financial Assets
(i) Trade receivables 9 4,629.90 4,192.56
(i) Cash and cash equivalents 10 25.07 380.24
(i) Bank Balances other than (i) above k! 383.31 1,005.55
(lv) Loans 5 4145 1.75
(v) Other Financial Assets 6 177.50 101.61
c. Current Tax Assets (Net) - -
d. Other current assets 7 1,005.43 858.33
Total current assets 9,043.28 9,221.00
TOTAL ASSETS 11,707.88 10,916.38
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
a. Equity Share Capital 12 160.00 160.00
b. Other Equity 13 6,877.40 5,180.69
Total equity 7,037.40 5,340.69
LIABILITIES
1. Non-Current Liabilities
a. Financial Liabilities
(i) Bormowings 14 44.06 52.28
(ii} Lease Liabilities 15 167.00 28,33
b. Provisions 16 26.14 23.77
c. Deferred tax Liabilities (Net) 17 = 1.84
Total non-current liabilities 237.20 106.22
2. Current Liabilities
a. Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 18 116.25 377.75
(i) Lease Liabilities 18 25.13 36.46
(ili) Trade payables
- Total outstanding dues of Micro and Small Enterprises 19 30.22 2592
- Total oulstanding dues of creditors other than Micro and
Small Enterprises 19 3,756.97 4,678.40
(iv) Other Financial Liabilities 20 150.68 176.44
|b. Cther current liabilities 21 322,57 107.91
¢, Provislons 16 12.28 10.73
d. Current Tax Liabilities (MNet) 22 19.17 53.86
Total current liabilities 4,433.28 5,469.47
Tolal liabilities 4,670.48 §,575.69
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 11,707.88 10,916.38
Corporate Information & Significant Accounting Polices 1&2
The accompanying notes form an integral part of Financial Statements
As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board of Gandhar Oil Refinery (India) Limited
For Kailash Chand Jain & Co, §
Chartered Accountants N t?
g § " . " sl
Firm Regi S 112318BW ('-—_-.% ﬁ
==
/ TMANE \ Ramesh Parekh  Samir Parekh Asjesh Parekh
Chairman & Joint Managing Joint Managing Direclor
Managing Director Director
DIN: 01108443 DIN: 02225839 DIN: 02285795
a5 4 A
i / !
Dipesh Me Jayshree Soni ndrajit Bhattachary]| [a
Pariner Company Secretary Chief Financial Office
Mem Membership No.06528
Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai
Dale : May 24, 2023 Date : May 24, 2023




GANDHAR OIL REFINERY (INDIA) LIMITED

CIN: U23200MH1992PLC068905

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2023

The accompanying notes form an integral part of Financial Statements

(% in Million)
For the year ended For the year ended
Note No. March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
INCOME
Revenue from operations 23 29,222.61 29,245.30
Other Income 24 239.52 651.23
Total Income 29,462.13 29,896.53
EXPENSES
Cost of Materials Consumed 25 22,806.31 19,190.36
Purchases of Stock-in-Trade 26 2,146.36 5,891.99
Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods, Work -in
Progress and Stock-in-Trade 27 175.57 95.42
Employee benefils expense 28 385.28 27717
Finance Costs 29 377.63 236.21
Depreciation and amortization expense 30 126.96 117.41
Other expenses 31 1,171.04 1,410.93
Total Expenses 27,189.15 27,319.49
Profit before exceptional items and tax 2,272.98 2,577.04
Exceptional items 51 - (5.10)
Profit Before Tax 2,272.98 2,582.14
Tax Expense :
- Current Tax 581.00 614.00
- Deferred Tax (3.28) 2.09
- Excess/Short Provision for tax = -
Total Tax Expense 577.71 616.09
Profit for the Year 1,695.27 1,966.05
Other Comprehensive Income
Items that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss
Remeasurement gain | (loss) on defined benefit plans 1.93 0.81
Income Tax on Items that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss (0.49) (0.20)
Other Comprehensive Income, net of tax 1.44 0.61
Total Comprehensive income for the year 1,696.71 1,966.66
Earnings per Equity Share of face value of¥ 2 each 43
- Basic and diluted (in ¥) 21.19 24.58
Corporate Information & Significant Accounting Policies 1&2

As per our report of even date attached
For Kailash Chand Jain & Co.

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 112318W

Director

Place . Mumbai
Date : May 24, 2023

DIN: 01108443

i.2%
Jayshree Soni
Company Secretary

Membership No.06528

Samir Parekh

Joint Managing Director Joint Managing Director

DIN: 02225839

Place : Mumbai
Date : May 24, 2023

Chief Financial O

For and on behalf of the Board of Gandhar Oil Refinery (India) Limited

et

Ramesh Parekh
Chairman & Managing

S

arekh




GANDHAR OIL REFINERY (INDIA) LIMITED
CIN: U232002300MH1992PLC0O68905

Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended March 31, 2023

(% in Million)
| [Particulars For the year ended March 31, 2023 For the year ended March 31, 2022
A |Cash flow from Operating activities
Profit before exceptional items and tax 2,272.98 2,577.04
Adjustment for :
Exchange Rate difference on Foreign Currency translation
Finance Costs 377.63 236.21
Depreciation and amortization expense 126.96 117.41
Net (Gain) / loss on sale of Property, Plant and Equipment 0.59 0.92
Net (gain) / loss on sale of investments - (0.00)
Gain on sale of shares - subsidiary company - (53.82)
Bad debts / Advances wrilten off 0.40 52,65
Provision for Doubtful Debts (net of write back) 17.24 1.95
Accrual (gain) / loss of defined benefit plans 1.93 0.81
Net unrealised foreign exchange (gain)loss (11.74) 14.82
Dividend Income on Investments (16.63) (447.36)
Fair value (gain)/loss on investments 0.05 (0.37)
Interest received (84.42) (66.42)
412.01 (143.21)
2,684.99 2433.83
Operating Profit before working capital changes
Adjustment for :
Financial Assets (510.25) 503.32
Non - Financial Assels (59.29) (151,08)
Inventories (199.66) (594.87)
Financial Liabililies (994.40) (448.30)
Non-Financial Liabilities 218.58 3.76
(1,545.01) (687.17)
1,139.97 1,746.66
Less: Exceptional ltems - 510
Cash generated from operations 1,139.97 1,751.76
Income Tax (paid) / refund {615.69) (578.72))
Net Cash generated From/ (used in) Operating Activities (A) 524.29 1,173.04
B |Cash flows from Investing activities
Salef(Addition)ofito property, plant and equipment and
investment properties (497.09) (300.13)
Salef(Addition)offto Investments 0.00 55.27
Interest received B84.42 66.42
Dividend Income on Investments 16.63 447.36
Net Cash generated fromi(used in) Investing Activities (B) (396.04) 268.92
C |Cash flows from Financing activities
Finance Costs (349.93) (225.53)
Proceeds / repayment from/(of) long-term borrowings 62.22 (116.20)
Proceeds / repayment from/(of) Short-term borrowings (331.95) (126.75)
Fixed Deposits and margin deposit with bank not considered as
cash equivalents -earmarked bank balances (net) (Refer note
no. 3 below) 202,63 (159.98)
Dividend paid (including dividend tax) = (456.00)
Principal payment of lease liabilities (38.69) (51.53)
Finance Cosls paid towards lease liabilities 27 70 (10.68)
Net cash generated from/(used in) financing activities (C) {483.42]’ (1,145.67)
Net increase /(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A + (355.17) 295.29
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 380.24 84.95
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 25.07 380.24




ANDHA IL REFIN 1A) LIMITED

CIN: U232002300MH1992PLCO68905

Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended March 31, 2023

(2 in Million)
[Particulars For the year ended March 31,2023 | For the year ended March 31, 2022
Notes:
-1|Components of Cash and Cash equivalents

Cash on hand 245 3.14
Balances with banks
- In current accounts 4.19 24432
- In Cash Credit Account 15.59 65.66
- In Export Earners Foreign Currency Account 2.64 67.12
- Term Deposit account with bank 948.78 1,158.01
Less: Excluded as per Note-3 (948.78) - (1,158.01) -

25.07 380.24

(2) Statement of Cash Flow has been prepared under the indirect method as sel out in Indian Accounting Standard: (Ind AS 7) - "Statement of Cash
Flow",

(3) Cash and Cash equivalents excludes Fixed Deposits with Banks which have been pledged.
(4) Change in Liability arising from financing activilies
(% in Million)
As at March 31, Foreign exchange As at March 31,
Particulars 2022 Cash flow movement 2023
Borrowing - Non Current (Refer Note 14) 52.28 (8.22) - 44.06
Borrowing - Current (Refer Note 18) 341.67 (331.43) (0.52) 9.72
36.08 70.45 - 106.53
430.02 (269.19) (0.52) 160.31
As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Gandhar Qil Refinery (India) Limited

Ramesh Parekh  Sa

Chairman & Joint Managing
Managing Director Director

DIN: 01108443 DIN: 02225839

Jayshree Soni Indrajit Bhattacharyya
Pa Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
Membership No. : 134607

For Kailash Chand Jain & Co.
Chartered Accountants = .
Firm Registration No: 112318W @G}/ ﬁl
L GHAND mir Parekh

Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai
Date : May 24, 2023 Date : May 24 2023
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Note 1 : General Information :

0

(i

Corporate Information

Gandhar Oil Refinery (India) limited ('The Company') was incorporated on October 7,1992
under Companies Act, 1956 as a private limited company . The Company was subsequently
converted into a public limited company on August 22,2005. The Company is domiciled in India
having registered office at 18th floor, DLH park, Goregaon (West), Mumbai -400062,
Maharashtra, India.

The Company is principally engaged in three segments namely, manufacturing and trading of
petroleum products / specialty oils, trading of non-coking coal and providing consignment / del-
credere agency services for sale of polymers to local markets. The Company has its
manufacturing facilities located at MIDC Taloja, Maharashtra and Silvassa (U.T.) along with
branch offices and various depots across the country.

Authorisation of financial statements

The standalone financial statements were approved for issue in accordance with a resolution of
the Board of Directors passed on May 24, 2023.

Basis of Preparation

This note provide a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation and
presentation of these standalone financial statements.
Compliance with Ind AS:

The standalone financial statements have been prepared to comply, in all material aspects, with
the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs pursuant to
Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 3 of Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 and the relevant amendment Rules issued thereafter.

The accounting policies are applied consistently to all the periods presented in the financial
statements.

Classification of assets and liabilities:

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current based on the Company's
normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in Division Il to Schedule Ill to the Companies
Act, 2013.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current on net basis.

For the above purposes, the Company has determined the operating cycle as twelve months
based on the nature of products and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing
and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents.

Basis of Measurement
The financial statements have been prepared on accrual and going concern basis under the
historical cost convention except:

(a) certain financial instruments (including derivative instruments) and

(b) defined benefit plans

which are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the
accounting policies below




Functional and presentation currency
The financial statements are presented in Indian rupees, which is the Company's functional

currency. All amounts have been rounded to the nearest millions as per requirement of

Schedule lll, unless otherwise stated.
Critical estimates and judgements

Preparations of the financial statements require use of accounting estimates which, by
definition, will seldom equal the actual results. This note provides an overview of the areas that
involved a higher degree of judgement or complexity, and items which are more likely to be
materially adjusted due to estimates and assumptions turning out to be different than those
originally assessed. Detailed information about each of these estimates and judgements is
included in relevant notes together with information about the basis of calculation for each
affected line item in the Financial Statements.

The areas involving critical estimates or judgements are:

i) Estimation of useful life of tangible assets : Note 2(1)

ii) Estimation of defined benefit obligations: Note 34

iii) Fair value measurements: Note 40 (ii)

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated. They are based on historical experience
and other factors, including expectations of future events that may have financial impact on the
company and that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Measurement of fair Values
The Company measures certain financial assets and financial liabilities including derivatives
and defined benefit plans at fair value.

The Company has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair
values. The management regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation
adjustments. If third party information, such as broker quotes or pricing 'services, is used to
measure fair values, then the management assesses the evidence obtained from the third
parties to support the conclusion that such valuations meet the requirements of Ind AS,
including the level in the fair value hierarchy in which such valuations should be classified.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either

a) in the principal market for the asset or liability or
b) in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability.




The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act
in their economic best interest.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements
are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-
assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

Recent accounting pronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (‘MCA") notifies new standards or amendments to the existing
standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time.
On March 31, 2023, MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment
Rules, 2023, as below:

Ind AS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements

This amendment requires the entities to disclose their material accounting policies rather
than their significant accounting policies. The effective date for adoption of this
amendment is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2023. The Company has
evaluated the amendment and the impact of the amendment is insignificant in the
financial statements.

Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

This amendment has introduced a definition of ‘accounting estimates’ and included
amendments to Ind AS 8 to help entities distinguish changes in accounting policies from
changes in accounting estimates. The effective date for adoption of this amendment is
annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2023. The Company has evaluated the
amendment and there is no impact on its financial statements.

Ind AS 12 - Income Taxes

This amendment has narrowed the scope of the initial recognition exemption so that it
does not apply to transactions that give rise to equal and offsetting temporary differences.
The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after
April 1, 2023. The Company has evaluated the amendment and there is no impact on its
financial statement.

Significant Accounting Policies
The significant accounting policies used in preparation of the standalone financial stateme nts

have been included in the relevant notes to the standalone financial statements.




Notes to Standalone Financial Statements

Note 2 : Significant Accounting Policies
1 Property , Plant and Equipment

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Recognition and Measurement :

Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) are measured at Original cost and are net of tax / duty
credit availed less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Advances paid towards the acquisition of PPE outstanding at each reporting date are classified
as capital advances under Other Non-Current Assets and Property, Plant and Equipment which
are not ready for intended use as on the date of Balance Sheet are disclosed as “Capital work-
in-progress”.

Capital expenditure on tangible assets for Research and Development is classified under
Property, Plant and Equipment and is depreciated on the same basis as other Property, Plant
and Equipment.

Property, Plant and Equipment are eliminated from financial statement on disposal and gains or
losses arising from disposal are recognised in the statement of Profit and Loss in the year of
occurrence.

Lease arrangements for land are identified as finance lease, in case such arrangements result
in transfer of the related risks and rewards to the Company

The cost of the property, plant and equipment's at April 01, 2016, the company's date of
transition to Ind AS, was determined with reference to its carrying value at that date.

Subsequent expenditure :

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss during the period in
which they are incurred.

When Significant parts of Property, Plant and Equipment's are required to be replaced, the
Company derecognises the replaced part and recognises the new part with its own associated
useful life and it is depreciated accordingly.

Depreciation :

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment other than Improvements to Leasehold/Licensed
Premises have been provided on straight-line method and computed with reference to the
useful life of respective assets specified and in the manner prescribed in Schedule Il of the
Companies Act, 2013.

In case of additions/deductions to/from the property, plant and equipment made during the year,
depreciation has been provided on pro-rata basis.

Leasehold land is amortized over primary lease period.
Improvements to Leasehold/Licensed Premises are depreciated on a straight-line method over
the Primary Lease Period or over a period of 5 years whichever is less starting from the date
when the Leasehold/Licensed Premises are put to use.




Useful life considered for calculation of depreciation (Specified in Schedule Il) for various
assets class are as follows:

Asset Class Useful life
Factory Building 30 years
Non-Factory Building 60 years
Plant & Equipments 15 years
Furniture & Fixtures 10 years
Vehicles 8 years
Air Conditioners 10 years
Laboratory equipments 10 years
Office Equipments 5 years
Computers 3 years
Electrical Fittings 10 years
Improvement in Leased Asset 5 years

The residual value is not more than 5% of the original cost of the asset. Depreciation on
additions / deletions is calculated pro-rata from month of such additions / deletion as case the
may be. Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying
amount. These are included in Statement of profit and loss.

2 Investment Properties

(i)

(i)

Recognition and Measurement :

Investment Property comprise of Freehold Land and Buildings.

Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, investment properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment loss, if any.

Investment properties are derecognised either when they have been disposed off or when they
are permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from their
disposal. The difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period of derecognition.

The cost of the Investment properties at April 01, 2016, the company's date of transition to Ind
AS, was determined with reference to its carrying value at that date.

Depreciation
Depreciation on Investment Property is provided, under the Straight Line Method, pro rata to the
period of use, based on useful lives specified in Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013.

Useful life considered for calculation of depreciation (Specified in Schedule 11) for various
assets class are as follows:

Asset Class Useful life
Non-Factory Building 30 years

The residual value is not more than 5% of the original cost of the asset. Depreciation on
additions / deletions is calculated pro-rata from month of such additions / deletion as case the
may be. Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying
amount. These are included in Statement of profit and loss.
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3 Intangible Assets
() Recognition and measurement
Intangible assets are recognised when it is probable that future economic benefits that are
attributable to concerned assets will flow to the Company and the cost of the assets can be
measured reliably.
Gain or loss arising from derecognition of an intangible asset is recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss.

(i)  Technical know-how developed by the Company-
Expenditure incurred on know-how developed by the company, post research stage, is
recognized as an intangible asset, if and only if the future economic benefits attributable are
probable to flow to the Company and the costs can be measured reliably.

(iii) Amortisation
Software's are stated at cost of acquisition and are amortized on straight line basis over a
period of 5 years irrespective of the date of acquisition.
The cost of technical know-how developed is amortized equally over its estimated life i.e.
generally three years.
The cost of the Intangible Assets at April 01, 2016, the company's date of transition to Ind AS,
was determined with reference to its carrying value at that date.

4 Impairment of non-financial assets
The carrying values of assets / cash generating units at each balance sheet date are reviewed for
impairment if any indication of impairment exists.

If the carrying amount of the assets exceed the estimated recoverable amount, impairment is
recognized for such excess amount. The impairment loss is recognized as an expense in the
Statement of Profit and Loss, unless the asset is carried at revalued amount, in which case any
impairment loss of the revalued asset is treated as a revaluation decrease to the extent a revaluation
reserve is available for that asset.

When there is indication that an impairment loss recognized for an asset in earlier accounting periods
which no longer exists or may have decreased, such reversal of impairment loss is recognized in the
Statement of Profit and Loss, to the extent the amount was previously charged to the Statement of
Profit and Loss

5 Investments in Subsidiaries and Jointly Controlled Entities

Investments in subsidiaries and jointly controlled entities are carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses, if any as per Ind As 27. Where an indication of impairment exists, the carrying
amount of the investment is assessed and written down immediately to its recoverable amount. On
disposal of investments in subsidiaries, and jointly controlled entities the difference between net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amounts are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.




6 Inventories
() Raw Materials, Traded Goods, Stores & spares, Fuel, Packing and Packaging Materials
(Including in Transit) are valued at cost or net realizable value whichever is lower. The cost
includes the purchase price, freight inwards and other expenditure directly attributable to the
acquisition and is net of trade discounts and rebates as well as Tax benefit available, if any.

(i) Finished goods (including in Transit) are valued at cost or net realizable value whichever is
lower. Cost includes appropriate allocation of overheads based on normal operating capacity

(iii) Cost is arrived at on First-in-First-out basis in case of Traded goods and on moving Weighted
average basis in case of other items of inventories.

7 Cash & Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand , balances with banks in current accounts, and
cheques/drafts on hand.

8 Assets held for Sale
Non-current assets or disposal groups comprising of assets and liabilities are classified as ‘held for
sale’ when all of the following criteria’s are met:
(i) decision has been made to sell;
(i) the assets are available for immediate sale in its present condition;
(iii) the assets are being actively marketed and
(iv) sale has been agreed or is expected to be concluded within 12 months of the Balance Sheet date.

Subsequently, such non-current assets and disposal groups classified as held for sale are measured
at the lower of its carrying value and fair value less costs to sell. Non-current assets held for sale are
not depreciated or amortised.

9 Financial Assets :
(i) Initial recognition and measurement
Financial assets are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

On initial recognition, a financial asset is recognised at fair value, in case of Financial assets
which are recognised at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL), its transaction cost is
recognised in the statement of profit and loss. In other cases, the transaction cost is attributed
to the acquisition value of the financial asset.

(ii) Subsequent measurement
Financial assets are subsequently classified and measured at
(i) Amortised Cost
(ii) fair Value through profit & Loss ( FVTPL)
(iii) fair Value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)
Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their recognition, except if and in the period
the Company changes its business model for managing financial assets.

(iii) Trade Receivables and Loans
Trade receivables are initially recognised at fair value. Subsequently, these assets are held at
amortised cost, using the effective interest rate (EIR) method net of any expected credit losses.
The EIR is the rate that discounts estimated future cash income through the expected life of
financial instrument. =
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(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Debt Instruments

Debt instruments are initially measured at amortised cost, fair value through other
comprehensive income (‘FVOCI') or fair value through profit or loss (‘FVTPL’) till derecognition
on the basis of

(i) the Company's business model for managing the financial assets and

(ii) the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.

(a) Measured at amortised cost:
Financial assets that are held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest, are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
(‘EIR’) method less impairment, if any. The amortisation of EIR and loss arising from
impairment, if any is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(b) Measured at fair value through other comprehensive income:
Financial assets that are held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both,
selling financial assets and collecting contractual cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest, are subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive
income (OCI). Interest income measured using the EIR method and impairment losses, if
any are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. On derecognition, cumulative gain
or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity to ‘Other Income’ in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

(c) Measured at fair value through profit or loss:
A financial asset not classified as either amortised cost or FVOCI, is classified as FVTPL.
Such financial assets are measured at fair value with all changes in fair value, including
interest income and dividend income if any, recognised as ‘Other Income’ in the Statement
of Profit and Loss.

Equity Instruments and Mutual Fund
All investments in equity instruments classified under financial assets are initially measured at
fair value, the Company may, on initial recognition, irrevocably elect to measure the same either
at FVOCI or FVTPL.

The Company makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. Fair value changes
on an equity instrument is recognised as other income in the Statement of Profit and Loss
unless the Company has elected to measure such instrument at FVOCI. Fair value changes
excluding dividends, on an equity instrument measured at FVOCI are recognized in OCI.
Amounts recognised in OCI are not subsequently reclassified to the Statement of Profit and
Loss. Dividend income on the investments in equity instruments are recognised as ‘other
income' in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Derecognition

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the financial asset expire, or it transfers the contractual rights to receive the cash flows from the
asset.




(vii) Impairment of Financial Asset

Expected credit losses are recognized for all debt instruments subsequent to initial recognition
other than financials assets in FVTPL category.

For financial assets other than trade receivables, as per Ind AS 109, the Company recognises
12 month expected credit losses for all originated or acquired financial assets if at the reporting
date the credit risk of the financial asset has not increased significantly since its initial
recognition. The expected credit losses are measured as lifetime expected credit losses if the
credit risk on financial asset increases significantly since its initial recognition. The Company's
trade receivables do not contain significant financing component and loss allowance on trade
receivables is measured at an amount equal to life time expected losses i.e. expected cash
shortfall.

The impairment losses and reversals are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.
10 Financial Liabilities :
(i) Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Financial liabilities are initially measured at the amortised cost
unless at initial recognition, they are classified as fair value through profit and loss. In case of
trade payables, they are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently, these liabilities are
held at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

(i) Subsequent measurement
Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method.
Financial liabilities carried at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value with all
changes in fair value recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(iii) Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a
payment to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor
fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial
guarantee contracts are recognised initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is
measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per impairment
requirements of Ind-AS 109 and the amount recognised less cumulative amortisation.

(iv) Derecognition
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged,
cancelled or expires.

11 Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet
if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

12 Derivative financial instruments
The Company uses derivative financial instruments such as forward currency contracts to hedge its
foreign currency risks. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on
the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value
at the end of each reporting period. The accounting for subsequent changes in fair value depends on
whether the derivative is designated as a hedging instrument, and if so, the nature of item being
hedged and the type of hedge relationship designated.

Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities
when the fair value is negative.




13 Provisions and Contingent Liabilities
Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation as a result of a past event: it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and when a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made. Provisions are
measured at the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the
Balance Sheet date. The expenses relating to a provision is presented in the Statement of Profit and
Loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the
expected future cash flows specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised as
finance cost.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the
existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation that arises
from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made.

A contingent asset is not recognised but disclosed in the financial statements where an inflow of
economic benefit is probable.

Commitments includes the amount of purchase orders (net of advance) issued to parties for
acquisition of assets. Provisions, contingent assets, contingent liabilites and commitments are
reviewed at each balance sheet date.

14 Revenue Recognition
Effective April 1 2018, the company adopted Ind AS 115 "Revenue from Contracts with
Customers." The effect on adoption of IND AS 115 is insignificant.

a. Revenue is recognised when control of goods is transferred to a customer in
accordance with the terms of the contract. The control of the goods is transferred upon
delivery to the customers either at factory gate of the Company or Specific location of the
customer or when goods are handed over to freight carrier, as per the terms of the contract. A
receivable is recognised by the Company when the goods are delivered to the customer
as this represents the point in time at which the right to consideration becomes unconditional,
as only the passage of time is required before payment is due.

Revenue from services is recognised upon completion of services.

Revenue is measured based on the consideration to which the Company expects to be
entitied as per contract with a customer. The consideration is determined based on the price
specified in the contract, net of estimated variable consideration. Accumulated experience is
used to estimate and provide for the variable consideration, using the expected value method,
and revenue is recognised to the extent that it is highly probable that a significant reversal will
not occur. Revenue excludes any taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government which
are levied on sales such as goods and services tax.

b. Insurance Claims are accounted when the ultimate outcome of the same is certain and amount
ascertained. Till the time of uncertainty about outcome and amount of claim, their recognition is
postponed.

(T Dividends are recognised in the statement of Profit and Loss only when the right to receive
payment is established:, It is probable that economic benefit associated with the Dividend will
flow to the company and the amount of Dividend can be measured reliably.




For all financial instruments measured at amortised cost, interest income is recorded using the
effective interest rate (EIR), which is the rate that discounts the estimated future cash payments
or receipts through the expected life of the financial instruments or a shorter period, where
appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial assets. Interest income is included in
other income in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Income on assets given on operating lease is recognised on a straight line basis over the lease
term in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Eligible export incentives are recognised in the year in which the conditions precedent
are met and there is no significant uncertainty about the collectability.

15 Employee Benefits

(i)

(i)

Short Term Benefits

All employee benefits including leave encashment (short term compensated absences) and

bonus/ex-gratia (incentives) payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are

classified as short term employee benefits and are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss

of the year.

Post Employment Benefits

(a) Defined Contribution Plans
Retirement/Employee benefits in the form of Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance
and labour welfare fund are considered as defined contribution plan and contributions to the
respective funds administered by the Government are charged to the Statement of profit
and loss of the year when the contribution to the respective funds are due

(b) Defined Benefit Plans
Retirement benefits in the form of gratuity is considered as defined benefit obligation and is
provided for on the basis of an actuarial valuation on projected unit credit method made as
at the date of the Balance Sheet. Gratuity liability is non-funded.

Re-measurement of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and
losses are recognized immediately in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI). Net interest
expense (income) on the net defined liability (assets) is computed by applying the discount
rate, used to measure the net defined liability (asset). Net interest expense and other
expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss.

(c) Other Long-Term Employee Benefits
As per the present policy of the Group, there are no other long term benefits to which its
employees are entitled.

(d) Terminal Benefits
All terminal benefits are recognized as an expense in the period in which they are incurred




16 Leases :

At the inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is or contains, a lease.
A contract is, or contains a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange of consideration. To assess whether a contract
conveys the right to control the use of an asset the Company assesses whether:

The contract involves the use of an identified asset — this may be specified explicitly or
implicitly, and should be physically distinct or represent substantially all of the capability of a
physical distinct asset. If the supplier has a substantive substitution right, then the asset is not
identified.

The Company has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the
asset throughout the period of use; and

The Company has the right to direct the use of the asset. The Company has this right when it
has the decision-making rights that are most relevant to changing how and for what purpose the
asset is used.

As a Lessee
Right-of-use Asset

The Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement
date. At the commencement date, a lessee shall measure the right-of-use asset at cost which
comprises initial measurement of the lease liability, any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives received, any initial direct costs incurred by the
lessee; and an estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling and removing the
underlying asset, restoring the site on which it is located or restoring the underlying asset to the
condition required by the terms and conditions of the lease.

Lease Liability

At the commencement date, a lessee shall measure the lease liability at the present value of
the lease payments that are not paid at that date. The lease payments shall be discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If that rate
cannot be readily determined, the lessee shall use the lessee's incremental borrowing rate.

Short-term lease and leases of low-value assets

The Company has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-
term leases that have a lease term of less than 12 months or less and leases of low-value
assets. The Company recognises the lease payments associated with these leases as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The election for short-term leases shall be made by class of underlying asset to which the right
of use relates. A class of underlying asset is a grouping of underlying assets of a similar nature
and use in Company's operations. The election for leases for which the underlying f
low value can be made on a lease-by-lease basis.




17 Research and Development Expenditure
(i) Revenue expenditure on Research & Development is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss
of the year in which it is incurred.
However, expenditure incurred at development phase, where it is reasonably certain that outcome of
research will be commercially exploited to yield economic benefits to the company is considered as
intangible assets and accounted in the manner specified in Clause 3 (i) above.
(i) Capital expenditure incurred during the year on Research & Development is included under
additions to property, plant and equipment's.

18 Exceptional ltems

When items of income and expense within statement of profit and loss from ordinary activities are of
such size, nature or incidence that their disclosure is relevant to explain the performance of the
enterprise for the period, the nature and amount of such material items are disclosed separately as
exceptional items.

19 Segment Reporting

The Chief Operational Decision Maker monitors the operating results of its business Segments
separately for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and performance
assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on profit and loss and is measured
consistently with profit or loss in the financial statements.

The Accounting Policies adopted for segment reporting are in line with the Accounting Policies of the
Company. Segment assets include all operating assets used by the business segments and consist
principally of fixed assets, trade receivables and inventories. Segment liabilities include the operating
liabilities that result from the operating activities of the business.

Segment assets and liabilities that cannot be allocated between the segments are shown as part of
unallocated corporate assets and liabilities respectively. Income / Expenses relating to the enterprise
as a whole and not allocable on a reasonable basis to business segments are reflected as
unallocated corporate income / expenses.

20 Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs that the Company incurs in connection with the borrowing
of funds and is measured with reference to the effective interest rate applicable to the respective
borrowing. Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of an asset that necessarily
takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use are capitalised as part of the cost of
that asset till the date it is put to use. Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the
period in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs also include exchange differences to the extent
that are regarded as an adjustment to borrowing costs.

21 Foreign Exchange Transactions
()  The financial statements of the Company are presented in Indian Rupee (INR), which is
Company’s functional and presentation currency.

(i) ~ Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using exchange rate
prevailing on the date of transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities are translated at rate of
exchange prevailing at the reporting date. The difference arising on settlement or translation on
account of fluctuation in the rate of exchange is dealt within the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(i) Foreign exchange differences regarded as an adjustment to borrowing costs are presented in
the Statement of Profit and Loss, as finance costs. All other foreign exchange gains and losses
are presented in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a net basis within other gains / (losses).

(iv)  Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.




22 Taxes on Income
Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax and is recognized in the Statement of Profit
and Loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in equity or in OCI.

(i)

(ii)

Current Tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for
the year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. It is
measured using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences arising between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for
taxation purposes.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for unused tax losses, unused tax credits and deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which they can be used. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and
are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized;
such reductions are reversed when the probability of future taxable profits improves.

Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and recognized to the
extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will be available against which
they can be used,

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary
differences when they reverse, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting
date.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation
authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are off set where the Company has a legally
enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously.

23 Earnings Per Share
Basic Earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit / (loss) for the period attributable to
the equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the
period. For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit / (loss) for the period
attributable to the equity shareholders and the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the period is adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

24 Expected Credit losses and Impairment losses on investment

The Company reviews its carrying value of investments carried at amortised cost annually or more
frequently when there is indication for impairment. If the recoverable amount is less than its carrying
amount, the impairment loss is accounted for.
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a)

b)

c)

d)

3 (c) Investment Properties (¥ in Million)
Particulars Freehold Land Building Total
Gross Carrying Amount
Deemed Cost
As at April 1, 2021 5.48 1.89 7.37
Additions - 1.09 1.09
Disposal and adjustments - - -
As at March 31, 2022 5.48 2.98 B.46
Additions - - -
Disposal and adjustments . - -
As at March 31, 2023 5.48 2.98 8.46
Depreciation
As at April 1, 2021 - - -
Charge for the year 0.04 0.04
Disposal and adjustments
As at March 31, 2022 B 0.04 0.04
Charge for the year 0.05 0.05
Disposal and adjustments
As at March 31, 2023 - 0.10 0.10
Net Carrying Amount
As at March 31, 2022 5.48 2.94 8.42
As at March 31, 2023 5.48 2.89 8.36
Notes
Fair value
As at March 31, 2022 6.03 18.04 24,07
As at March 31, 2023 6.03 18.04 24.07
Information regarding income and expenditure of Investment Property
| 2022-23 2021-22
!Realal income derived from investment properties 0.03 -
Direct operating expenses (including repairs and maintenance) generating rental income - -
Direct operating expenses (including repairs and maintenance) that did not generate rental (0.08) (0.07)
income
(0.05)| (0.07)
Profit arising from investment properties before depreciation and indirect expenses
Less — Depreciation (0.05) (0.04)
Profit/(loss) arising from investment properties before indirect expenses (0.10) (0.11)

The Company's investment properties consist of 3 properties in India as on March, 31 2023. The company has purchased 1
property during the previous year. The management has determined that the investment property consists of two class of assets -

Free hold Land and building - based on the nature, characteristics and risks of each property.

The Company has no restriction on the realisability of its invesiment properties and no contractual obligations to purchase,
construct or develop investment properties or for repairs, maintenance and enhancements.

The fair valuation is based on current prices in the active market for similar properties. The main input used are quantum, area,
location, demand, age of building and trend of fair market rent in the location of the property.

The fair value is based on valuation performed by an accredited independent valuer. Fair valuation is based on replacement cost
method. The fair value measurement is categorised in level 2 fair value hierarchy.,

Refer Note 14 & 18 on Long term Borrowing and short term Borrowings for amounts of restrictions on the title and Investment

properties pledged as securities.




GANDHAR OIL REFINERY (INDIA) LIMITED

3 (d) Right of use assets (% in Million)
Particulars Lease hold land Building  Right of use assets Total

Gross Carrying Amount

As at April 1, 2021 109.28 78.39 187.68 187.68
Additions E - - -
Disposal and adjustments 1.12 - 112 1.12
As at March 31, 2022 108.17 78.39 186.56 186.56
Additions 166.03 - 166.03 166.03
Disposal and adjustments 33.88 - 33.88 33.88
As at March 31, 2023 240.32 78.39 318.71 318.71
Amortization

As at April 1, 2021 48.22 36.89 85.11 85.11
Charge for the year 27.99 18.45 46.44 46.44
Disposal and adjustments 1.12 - 1.12 112
As at March 31, 2022 75.10 55.34 130.43 130.43
Charge for the year 32.93 18.45 51.38 51.38
Disposal and adjustments 33.88 - 33.88 33.88
As at March 31, 2023 74.15 73.78 147.93 147.93
Net Carrying Amount

As at March 31, 2022 33.07 23.06 56.13 56.13
As at March 31, 2023 166.17 4.61 170.78 170.78
Notes

a) The Company has leasing arrangements for its office premises -head office and certain plots . Non-cancellable period for those
lease arrangements vary. The Company pays lease charges as fixed amount as per the respective lease agreements. In respect of
Ind AS 116 - Leases, the Company has adopted modified retrospective method under which the cumulative effect of initial
application is recognized in retained earnings at 1st April 2019. Right-of-use asset is measured, on a lease by lease basis, at
carmrying amount assuming the standard is applied since the commencement date. Discounling to arrive the value of asset is done
based on the incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial application.

The Company has leasing arrangements for its various commercial premises (other than mentioned above). Non-cancellable period
for those leasing arrangements are less than 12 months and the Company elected to apply the recognition exemption for short term
and leases for which the underlying assets is of low value. The lease amount is charged as rent.




GANDHAR OIL REFINERY (INDIA) LIMITED

3 (e) Intangible assets (Z in Million)
Particulars somputer
Software Total

Gross Carrying Amount

As at April 1, 2021 16.88 16.88
Additions - .
Disposal and adjustments - -
As at March 31, 2022 16.88 16.88
Additions 0.11 0.11
Disposal and adjustments - -
As at March 31, 2023 16.99 16.99
Amortization

As at April 1, 2021 7.70 7.70
Charge for the year 2.14 2.14
Disposal and adjustments

As at March 31, 2022 9.83 9.83
Charge for the year 2.16 2.16
Disposal and adjustments

As at March 31, 2023 11.99 11.99
Net Carrying Amount

As at March 31, 2022 7.04 7.04
As at March 31, 2023 5.00 5.00
Notes

a) Refer Note No. 36 for expenditure on Research and development.
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GANDHAR OIL REFINERY (INDIA) LIMITED

(T in Million)

(B)

(©

a)

b)

24

23 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
(A) Sale of products

- Petroleum Products/Speciality Oils
- Non-coking Coal
- Others

Finished Goods
Stock-in-trade

Sale of services

Other operating income
Revenue from operations (A + B + C)

Notes:
Details of Services Rendered
- Job work charges

- Cargo Handling Charges

Other Operaling Income
- Exports Incentives

- Scrap Sales

- Commission

- Miscellaneous Income

OTHER INCOME

Interest on

- Bank Deposits

- Others

Dividend Income from a subsidiary company (Refer Note
35(B)(2)(f) & 48)

Gain on sale of shares - subsidiary company (Refer Note
35(B)(3)(c) & 47)

Net gain on sale of Investments

Gain on fair valuation of Mutual Fund

Other Non Operating Income

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

29,174.12 28,518.82
= 637.82
29,174.12 29,156.64
26,603.15 22,376.47
2,670.97 6,780.17
29,174.12 29,156.64
2.24 19.48
46.25 69.18
29,222.61 29,245.30
2.24 1.84
- 17.64
2.24 19,48

0.69 0.91
4.37 4.40
5.47 7.3
35,72 56.56
46.25 69.18
(% in Million)

For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

74.93 60.33
9.49 6.09
16,63 447.36
# 53.82
. 0.00
= 0.37
136.47 83.26
239.52 651.23




GANDHAR OIL REFINERY (INDIA) LIMITED

25 COST OF MATERIA UMED

(A) COST OF RAW MATERIALS CONSUMED

(B) PACKING MATERIAL CONSUMED
Cost of packing materials consumed

TOTAL MATERIALS CONSUMED (A + B)

26 PURCHASE OF STOCK-IN-TRADE

Petroleum Products/Speciality Oils
Neon-Coking Coal
Others

IN-PROGRESS AND TRADED GOODS
(A) Inventories at the end of the year

Finished Goods
Stock-in-trade

(B) Inventories at the beginning of the year
Finished Goods
Stock-in-trade

(Increase}/decrease in Stock (B-A )

28 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE

Salaries, Wages, Bonus & Other Benefits
Contribution to Provident & other Fund
Gratuity

Staff Welfare Expenses

29 FINANCE COSTS

Interest Expense
Other Borrowing Costs

(¥ in Million)

For the year ended

For the year ended

27 CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS, WORK-

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
22,152.97 18,581.57
22,152.97 18,581.57
653.34 608.79
22,806.31 19,190.36
(¥ in Million)
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
2,146.36 5,685.38
- 304.33
- 228
2,146.36 5,991.99
(Z in Million)
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
345.70 332.09
37.48 226.66
383.18 558.74
332.09 286.50
226.66 367.67
558.75 654.16
175.57 95.42
(% in Million)
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
358.38 256.01
8.30 6.60
7.18 5.84
11.42 8.72
385.28 277147
(¥ in Million)
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
243.04 79.30
134.59 166.91
377.63 236.21




GANDHAR OIL REFINERY (INDIA) LIMITED

30 DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION EXPENSE

Depreciation of Property, Plant and Equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Amortization of Intangible assets

31 OTHER EXPENSES

Consumption of Stores and Spares
Power and Fuel
Electricity Charges
Labour Charges
Water Charges
Security Charges
Repairs and Maintenance
- To Plant & Machinery
- To Building
- To Others
Laboratory Expenses
Research & Development expenditure
Insurance ( net of Recovery)

Packaging Material/Charges

Freight and Transportation ( net of Recovery )
Supervision & Tesling Expenses

Vehicle Expenses

Commission

Legal and Professional Fees
Payment to Auditor (Excluding {axes)
As Auditor;-

- Audit fees
- Tax Audit fees

In other capacity-
- Taxation matters
- Other services

Postage, Courier and Telephones

Printing and Stationary

Donation

Expenditure on Corporate Social Responsibility
Advertisement and Sales Promotion
Travelling and Conveyance

Miscellaneous Expenses

Slorage Charges

Bad Debls Written off

Less: Provision for Doubtful Debts Written Back
Advances Written off

Provision for Doubtful Debts

Foreign Exchange Rate Fluctuation Loss/(Gain)(net)
Fees and Stamps

Rent

Rates and Taxes

Loss on Fair Valuation of Investments

Loss (Profit) on Sale of Fixed Assets (Net)
Bank charges

(2 in Million)
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
73.42 68,83
51.38 46.44
2.16 214
126.96 117.41
(¥ in Million)
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
33.78 19.79
31.19 26.05
2.37 228
65.13 56.37
0.48 0.52
7.96 8.16
B.77 5.65
6.98 3.39
20.73 17.16
0.22 1.52
36.89 33.18
36.17 36.60
30.68 44.01
403.89 461.53
444 7.34
5.41 542
112.01 189.49
16.66 19.44
220 2.00
0.55 0.50
- 1.20
0.00 0.40
6.38 583
4.34 A
0.19 0.50
14.03 6.40
41.86 35.57
55.51 2811
26.83 59.21
65.98 149.11
- 44.61
- (45.87)
0.40 8.03
17.24 47.82
66.79 96.91
10.09 7.25
3.18 4.21
23.19 8.25
0.05 .
0.59 0.92
7.92 8.74
1,171.04 1,410.93




Note : 32 Contingent liabilities
Claim against the company not acknowledged as debts

(% in Million)
As at
S.N |Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
a

1 |Outstanding Letters of Credit 1,658.09 2,372.24

2 |Guarantees issued by Bank 532.08 364.68

3 |Duty Saved on Export obligation against advance 2273 84.13
authorization licenses issued by Director General of
Foreign Trade.

4 |Demand raised by Central Excise Authorities 0.99 0.99
contested by Company. (Net of payment)

5 |Demand raised by Sales Tax Authorities contested 29.90 4410
by Company. ( Nel of payment )

6 |Demand raised by Custom Authorities contested by 407.82 407.82
Company (Net of payment)

7 |Demand raised by Income Tax Authorities & -
contested by Company (Net of payment)

b) Corporate Guarantees
Corporale Guaranlee given by Company to Bank for 1,014.72 938.16
loan given to Texol Lubritech FZC.
Tolal 3,666.33 4,212.13
Note

1 The Company has reviewed all its pending litigations and proceedings and has adequately provided for where
provisions are required and disclosed as contingent liabilities where applicable, in its financial statements. The
Company does not expect the outcome of these proceedings to have a materially adverse effect on its financial resuilts.

2 It is not practicable for the Company to estimate the timings of cash outflows, if any, in respect of the above pending
resolution of the respective proceedings as it is determinable only on receipt of judgements/decisions pending with
various forums/authorities.

3 Details of Guarantee given covered under Section 186 (4) of the Companies Act, 2013:

4 Guarantee given by Company to a Bank for loan given lo Texol Lubritech FZC. The loan is obtained by
Subsidiary/Joint Venture for business purpose.

Note 33 Commitments

(i) Capital Commitments (% in Million)
As at
S.N Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be

executed on capital accounts and not provided for
(net of advances) 25.17 106.32
25.17 106.32

Note 34 Employee Benefits
(i) Defined Contribution Plan

The Company has recognized the following amounts in the Statement of Profit and Loss towards its liability to Defined

Contribution Plans:-
(% in Million)
For the year ended | For the year ended
SrNo |Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
1|Provident Fund 8.71 6.91
2|Employee State Insurance Fund 0.14 0.18
3|Labour Welfare Fund 0.00 0.00
Total | 8.85 7.09




(ii)

Defined Benefit Plan

The details of the Company's post retirement benefit plan for gratuity (unfunded) for its employees in
conformity with the principles set out in Indian Accounting Standard — 19 which has been determined by an
Actuary appointed for the purpose and relied upon by the Auditors are given below :

(Z in Million)

Sr. NoParticulars

For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

Vi

Vi

Changes in present value of obligations

Present Value of Obligations at beginning of the year

Interest cost

Current Service Cost

Past service cost-(non vested benefits)
Past service cost-(vested benefits)
Benefits Paid

Contribution by plan participants
Business Combinations

Curtailments

Settlements

Actuarial (gain)/loss on obligations
Present Value of Obligations at end of period

Interest Expenses
Interest Cost

Fair Value of Plan Assets
Fair Value of Plan Assets at beginning
Interest Income

Net Liability

Present Value of Obligations at beginning of period
Fair Value of Plan Assets at beginning Report

Net Liability

Net Interest
Interest Expenses
Interest Income
Net Interest

Actual return on plan assets
Less Interest income included above
Return on plan assets excluding interest income

Actuarial Gain/(Loss) on obligation
Due to Demographic Assumption®
Due to Financial Assumption

Due to Experience

Total Actuarial (Gain)/Loss

34.13 33.15
2.29 1.93
4.82 5.01

(1.29) (5.15)

(1.93) (0.81)

38.01 34.13
2.29 1.93

34.13 33.15

34.13 33.15
2.29 1.93
2.29 1.93
(0.97) (1.13)
(0.96) 0.31
(1.93) (0.81)

*This figure does not reflect interrelationship between demographic assumption and financial assumption when a limit

is applied on the benefit the effect will be shown as an experience

Vil

Fair Value of Plan Assets

Opening Fair value of plan asset

Adjustment to opening Fair Value of plan asset
Return on Plan Assets Excl. interest income
Interest Income

Contributions by Employer

Contributions by Employee

Benefits Paid

Fair Value of Plan Assets at end

(5.15)




IX Past service cost recognised
Past service cost-(non vested benefits) - -
Past service cost-(vested benefits) E -
Average remaining future service till vesting of the benefits - -
Recognised Past service cost-non vested benefits = J
Recognised Past service cost-vested benefits = =
Unrecognised Past service cost-non vested benefits - -

X Amounts to be recognised in the balance sheet and statement of profit & Loss account

PVO at end of period 38.01 3413

Fair value of Plan assets at end of period = B

Funded status (38.01) (34.13)

Net Assets/(Liability) recognised in the balance sheet (38.01) (34.13)
Xl Expense recognized in the Statement of P & L alc

Current Service Cost 482 5.01

Net Interest 2.29 1.93

Past service cost-(non vested benefits) = =
Past service cost-(vested benefits) E =
Curtailment Effect . =
Settlement Effect s £
Expense recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss under

‘Employee benefits expense” 7.11 6.94

Xll  Other Comprehensive Income
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss recognised for the period (1.93) (0.81)
Asset limit effect - -
Return on plant Assets Excl. Net Interest - -
Unrecognised Actuarial (Gain)/Loss from previous period - -
Total Actuarial (Gain)/Loss recognised in (OCI) (1.93) (0.81)

Xl Movements in the Liability recognised in Balance Sheet
Opening Net Liability 34.13 33.15
Adjustments to opening balance - -
Expenses as above 7.1 6.94
Contribution paid (1.29) (5.15)
Other Comprehensive Income(OCl) (1.83) (0.81)
Closing Net Liability 38.01 34.13
XIV Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013
Current Liability 11.87 10.35
Non-Current Liability 26.14 23.77
XV Projected Service Cost 4,74 4.82

XVI Asset Information
Not Applicable as the plan is unfunded

XVIl Assumptions as at 31-03-23 31-03-22
Mortality IALM (2012-14) Ult. IALM (2012-14) Ult.
Interest/Discount Rate 7.29% 6.85%
Rate of increase in compensation 5.00% 5.00%

Annual increase in healthcare costs

Future Changes in Maximum state healthcare benefits

Expected average remaining service 9,93 9.89
Retirement Age 58 Years 58 Years
Employee Attrition Rate Age:0to58:5%  Age:0to58:5%
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Note 35 Related Party disclosures
A.

List of related parties: (where transactions have taken place )

Sr No |Name of Related Party Nature of relationship
1|Subsidiaries
- Gandhar Shipping & Logistics Private Limited [Wholly Owned Subsidiary
- Gandhar Oil & Energy -DMCC Wholly Owned Subsidiary till 30/03/2022
- Texol Lubritech - FZC Subsidiary w.e.f.30/03/2022
Joint Venture till 29/03/2022
- Texol Lubricants Manufacturing LLC Stepdown subsidiary (incorprated on 23/02/2022)
2|Joint Venture

- Texol Oils - FZC Joint Venture (incorporated on 10/01/2023)
(No amount invested till 31/03/2023)

(2]

Key-management personnel / Individual Having substantial interest

Chairman and Managing Director w.e.f. September
Ramesh Parekh 21, 2020

Joint Managing Director w.e.f. October 01, 2021.

Samir Parekh Whole Time Director up to September 30, 2021
Joint Managing Director w.e.f. October 01, 2021.
Aslesh Parekh Whole Time Director up to September 30, 2021
Independent Non-executive Director (w.e.f. June
Raj Kishor Singh 28, 2019)
Independent Non-executive Director (w.e.f. August
Amrita Nautiyal 17, 2020)
Independent Non-executive Director (w.e.f. June
Deena Asit Mehta 22,2022)
Indrajit Bhattacharyya Chief Financial Officer
Jayshree Soni Company Secretary

w

Relative of Key Management Personnel
Saurabh Parekh

Sunita Parekh

Sharmistha Parekh

Dimple Parekh

Nishita Parekh

F Y

Enterprises owned / controlled by key management personnel or directors or their relatives
or person having significant interest

Parekh Bulk Carriers

Parekh Petroleum Products

Gandhar Coals & Mines Private Limited (Gandhar Coals & Mines converted to company w.e.f.
August 31, 2018)

Gandhar Infrastructure Project Private Limited (Strike off w.e.f January 12, 2022)

Nature Pure Wellness Private Ltd.

Gandhar Films and Studio Private Limited

Gandhar QOil & Energy -DMCC

Ghanish Energy FZE

5|Others )
Kamlaben Babulal Charitable Trust ZnAND J\
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36 Research & Development Expenditure (% in Million)
Sr Year Ended
No |Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Revenue Expenditure
a) |Salary, Wages & other benefits 33.22 30.71
b) |Laboratory Expense 1.28 1.06
c) |Other Exp. 0.35 0.22
d) |Travelling & Conveyance Expenses 1.06 0.52
e) |Telephone Expense 0.00 0.00
f) |Testing Expenses 0.08 0.03
g) |Repairs & Maintenance 0.90 0.63
Total 36.89 33.18
Capital Expenditure
a) |Laboratory Equipment 1.22 11.43
b) |Office/Other Equipment/Electrical Installation - 0.23
c) |Furniture & Fixture 1.01 -
Total 2.23 11.66
Total 39.12 44.84
37 Segmental Reporting

a) Primary Segmen busi b
i

The company has sold its coal business on Slump Sale basis on March 30, 2022. Therefore segment reporting is not applicable.
The company had identified Business Segment as the Primary Segment till March 30, 2022. Segments had been identified taking
into account the nature of the products, differing risks and returns, organizational structure and internal reporting system.

[Composition of the business segment till March 30, 2022

|Name of the Segment

Comprises of

Petroleum Products
Non-coking Coal

Others

Manufacturing and Trading of Petroleum Products

and Specialty Oils
Trading of Non-coking Coal*

Consignment and Del-credere Agency and other

trading items.

i) Information about Primary Segment are as follows :- *The company has sold its coal business on Slump Sale basis on March 30,

2022 therefore it is not a reportable segment on March 31, 2023

V) Segment Revenue, Segment Results, Segments Assets and Segment Liabilities includes the respective amounts identifiable to
each of the Segmentis and also amounts allocated on a reasonable (estimated) basis, if any.

B)  Secondary Segment reporting (by Geographical demarcation):

(i) The Secondary Segment is based on geographical market i.e. Domestic Market and Overseas Markets.

ii) Information about Secondary Segments are as follows (% in Million)
Particulars Year ended

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Segment Revenue
Domestic Market 18,641.28 21,125.87
Oversees Market 10,581.33 68,119.43
Total 29,222 .61 29,245.30
Segment Assets
Domestic Market 9,906.04 9,205.21
Oversees Market 1,711.84 1,711.18
Total 11,707.88 10,916.38

(iii) The Geographical Segments consists of
« Sales in domestic market represent sales to customers located in India.

- Sales in overseas market represent sales to customers located outside India.

(iv) The Company has common fixed assets for producing goods/providing services to domestic as well as overseas markets,
Hence, separate figures for fixed assets/ addition to fixed assels have not been furnished.




38 IND AS 116 - Leases (Z in Million)

Particulars 2022-23 2021-22
Right to use Assets

Balance at the beginning of the reporting period/year 56.13 102.57
Recoginised at April 1, 2019 (transition)* - -
Additions during the period/year 166.03 -
Deletion during the period/year - -
Amortisation for the year 51.38 46.44
Carrying value at the end of the period/year 170.78 56.13
Maturity Analysis of lease liabilities

Less than 1 year 2513 36.46
1to 5 years 75.42 28.33
More than 5 years 91.58 E
Total lease liabilities at the period/year end 192.13 64.79
Recognised into statement of Financial Position

Non Current 167.00 28.33
Current 2513 36.46
Amount recognised into Profit & Loss account

Amortisation of Right to use assets 51.38 46.44
Interest expenses on Lease liabilities 27.70 10.68
Expenses relating to Short term leases & low value assets leases 3.16 4.21
Total 82.24 61.33
Principal payment on lease liabilities 38.69 51.53
Amount recognised into Cash flows
Total cash outflows of lease payments (including short term leases &
low value assets leases) 69.55 66.42

*Effective April 1, 2019, the company adopted IND AS 116 - Leases. Company applied IND AS 116 using
modified retrospective approach, under which the cumulative effect of initial application is recognized in
retained earnings at April 1, 2019,

Refer Note2(16) for accounting policies adopted by Company for its leases.

The Company has applied paragraph 6 of IND AS 116; for accounting of Short term leases having lease
period of less than 12 months and leases for which the underlying assets if of low value.

Lease payments associated with these leases are accounted either on straight line basis over the lease term
or another systemic basis which is more representative of the lease payment pattern.




Note 39 Income Tax Expense (Z in Million)
Sr. For the year ended For the year ended
No Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

D]

Tax Expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss

Current Income Tax 581.00 614.00
Deferred Income Tax Liability / (Asset), net
Crigination and reversal of temporary differences (3.29) 2.09
Deferred Tax Expense (3.29) 2.09
Tax Expense For the Year 577.711 616.09
il)  Amounts recognised in Other Comprehensive Income
Items that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss
Remeasurement of defined benefit plan 1.93 0.81
1.93 0.81
i) Reconciliation of effective tax rate
Profit Before Tax 2272.98 2,582.14
Tax rate 0.25 0.25
Tax using the Company's domestic tax rate §72.06 640.87
Tax effect of:
Non-deductible tax expenses / disallowances under
Income Tax Act (Net) 9.32 0.72
Effect of Income taxed at specific rate - (37.06)
Others (0.38) 0.46
581.00 613.99
(% in Million)
Net Balance as on Recognised | Net Balance as

iv) Movement in deferred tax balances 01.04.2022 Recognised in P&L in OCI on 31.03.2023
Property, Plant and Equipment, Investment Properties 26.45 1.78 28.23
Allowable on payment basis (Net) 3.54 - 3.54
Investment in unquoted equity instruments(Mutual Funds) 0.15 (0.01) 0.14
Provisions (11.90) (5.80) 0.49 (17.21)
Indexation benefit on Land (16.39) 0.74 (15.66)
Net tax liabilities 1.84 (3.29) 0.49 (0.97)
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Note 42 Master netting or Similar agreements

The following lable presents the recognised financial instruments that are offset, or subject to enforceable master netting
arrangements and other similar agreements but not offset, as at Balance Sheet dates:

Financial Liabilities
Derivatives Instruments

(€ in Million)
Particulars Effect of offsetting on balance Sheet Related amounts not offset
Gross Amounts |Net Amounts Amounts Subject to|Financial
set off in the presented inthe |master netting instruments
Gross Amount __|Balance sheet _|Balance sheet arrangements collateral Net Amounts
As at March 31, 2023
Financial Assets
Derivatives Instruments 0.00 - 0.00 (0.00) - -
Financial Liabilities
Derivatives Instruments 10.37 - 10.37 (0.00) - 10.37
(¥ in Million)
Particulars Effect of offsetting on balance Shest Related amounts not offset
Gross Amounts |Net Amounts Amounts Subject to|Financial
set off in the presented in the |master netting instruments
Gross Amount _|Balance sheet |Balance sheet arrangements collateral Net Amounts
As at March 31, 2022
Financial Assets
Derivatives Instruments 4.02 - 4.02 - - 4.02

Offsetting arrangements

Derivatives

The Company enters into derivative contracts for hedging foreign exchange exposures. Agreements with derivative counterparties are
based on an ISDA Master Agreement. Under the terms of these arrangements, only where certain credit events occur (such as default),
the net position owing | receivable to a single counterparty in the same currency will be taken as owing and all the relevant arrangements
terminated. As the company does not presently have a legally enforceable right of set-off, these amounts have not been offset in the

Balance Sheel.




43 Earnings Per Share
Particulars Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Profit available for Equity Shareholders ( ¥ ) 1,695.27 1,966.05
|Weighted average number of Shares used in computing Basic and diluted
earnings per share. 80,000,000 80,000,000
Nominal Value of Per Equity Shares (%) 2,00 2.00
Basic and diluted Earnings Per Share (%) 21.19 24.58
44 Dividend on Equity Shares
Particulars Year ended

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

Proposed Final Dividend ZNil per shares (PY 21 per share)

Final Dividend 21 per shares paid of ¥10 each - 16.00
Interim Dividend 5.5 per shares paid of 22 each - 440.00
Weighted average number of Shares 80,000,000 80,000,000
Nominal Value of Per Equity Shares (%) 2.00 2.00

Proposed Dividend is subject to Shareholders' approval in the ensuing Annual General Meeting and has not been recognised as a

liability as at Balance Sheet date.

As on March 31, 2023, the tax liability with respect to the dividends proposed is % Nil (March 31, 2022 : ¥ Nil).

The Board of Directors at its meeting held on May 24, 2023 has not recommended any Interim/final dividend.

45 Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) :

Sr. |Particulars Year ended
No March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
(i) |Amount required to be spent by the Company during the year 19.55 6.28
(il) |Amount of expenditure incurred 14.03 6.40
(iii) |Shortfall at the end of the year* 5.52 -
(iv) |Total of previous years shortfall = z
{v) |Reason for shortfall Pertains to ongoing

projects NA

(vi) |Nature of CSR activities

Eradicating hunger, poverty and malnutrition,
providing food and meal for senior Ccitizen,
promoting health care & providing medical relief,
promoting education including special education
and employment enhancing vocational skills, relief
and rehabilitation for combating with COVID-19
pandemic related activities.

5.00 |

(vii) |Contribution to a trust controlled by the group' 550

(1) The Kamlaben Babulal Charitable Trust formed in the year 2002 by the promoter of Gandhar Oil Refinery (India) Ltd is a related
party. For the year ending March 31, 2023, the Company has made contributions to Kamlaben Babulal Charitable Trust to fulfil its
corporate social responsibilities. The trust was established to grant aids and make donations to schools, colleges etc,

* The unspent amount has been transferred to unspent CSR account within 30 days from the end of the financial year, in
accordance with the Companies Act, 2013 read with the CSR Amendment Rules,




46 IND AS 115 - Revenue from Contracts with Customers

U]

(i)

(ii)

Disaggregated revenue

The chief operational decision maker monitors the operating results of its Business Segments separately for the purpose
of making decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on
Profit or Loss and is measured consistently with profit or loss in the financial statements. Operaling segments have been
identified on the basis of nature of products / services.

The company uses the same operating segment information for reporting purposes in all its communication to various stakeholders
i.e. annual report, investor presentations

For disclosures containing the disaggregated revenue - Refer note no 37 - Segment Reporting
(Z in Million)

Contract balances 2022-23 2021-22

Contract assets
Unbilled revenue
As at April 1, 2022 - -
Add: Addition during the year - -

Less: Transferred to receivable - .

As at March 31, 2023 - -

Contract liability
Advances from customers
As at April 1, 2022 65.92 62.44
Add: Addition during the year 215.22 63.45
281.14 125.88
Less: Revenue recognised during the year (51.13) (59.97)

As at March 31, 2023 230.01 65.92

Refer note no 9 - for Trade receivables balances

Remaining performance obligations

The aggregate amount of the transaction price allocated to the performance obligations that are unsatisfied (or partially unsatisfied)
as of the end of the reporting period are having performance obligations, which are a part of the contracts that has an original
expected duration of one year or less. Hence, the company has applied practlical expedient as per Para 121 of the Ind As 115 in
regards to remaining performance obligations.

47 Sale of Overseas Subsidiary Company - Gandhar Oil & Energy DMCC to Gandhar Coals and Mines Private Limited

During the previous year, the parent Company has sold ils wholly owned overseas subsidiary Gandhar Oil & Energy (DMCC) to
Gandhar Coals & Mines Private Limited vide Sale Purchase agreement dated March 30, 2022 by way of transfer of 2000 ordinary
shares of AED 1000 each at a consideration of  55.61 million. For this purpose, the valuation of the shares of DMCC has been
computed on a fair market value (FMV) basis on February 22, 2022 reported as under:

No. Particulars Amount
1 Value per share $371.33
2 No of shares held by GORIL 2000
3 Total Valuation $7,42,660
4 Conversion Rate 15 =3 74,8804
5 Total INR Value 5566,10,678
Z in million 55.61
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53 Share issue expense

During the year ended March 31, 2023 the Company has filed Draft Red Herring Prospectus with SEB! in connection with the
proposed issue of Equity Shares of the Company by way of fresh issue and/ or an offer for sale by the existing shareholders.
Accordingly, expenses incurred by the Company aggregating to #55.14 Mn in connection with filing of Draft Red Herring Prospectus
have been shown under Other current assets. The same will be partly adjusted towards the securities prermium account and partly
recoverable from the existing shareholders (to the extent of shares offered for sale by existing shareholders, the expenses incurred
by the Company for the proposed issue are recoverable from them) as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. However,
the actual number/proportion of shares to be offered for sale being not known to the Company as at March 31, 2023 the same has
not been bifurcated and is included in Other current assets.

54 Texol Oils FZC - Joint Venture Company

The Company has incorporated a Joint Venture company i.e. Texol Oils FZC on 10th January, 2023 for dealing in Grease &
Lubricants Manufacturing, Grease and Lubricants Blending, Beauty and Personal Care Requisities Manufacturing, Refining and
Blending of Petroleum Products, Petrochemicals & Lubricants Import/Export/Storage/Trading of Petroleum Products,
Petrochemicals &, Lubricants and Import/Export/Storage/Trading of Petroleum Products, Petrochemicals, Lubricants & Grease,
Trading Refined Oil Producrs and as more particularly described in, and subject to, the License issued by the Hamriyah Free Zone
Authority.

The said company is yet to commence the business.

55 Other Statutory Disclosures

() The Company do not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for
holding any Benami property.

(i)  The Company have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during reporting periods.

(i) The Company does not have any transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or
disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any
other relevant provisions of the income Tax Act, 1961)

V) The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:
(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the fike to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

v} The Company have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the
understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,

(vi) The Company does not have any borrowings from banks and financiat ingtitutions that are used for any other purpose other than
the- specific purpose for which it was taken at the reporting balance sheet date.

vii

(v The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with Companies
(Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017.

(viif)
The Company is not declared as a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender during the any reporting period.

(ix) Section 8 of the Companies Act, 2013 companies are required to disclose grants or donations received during the year. Since, the
Company is not covered under Section 8 of the Companies Act, 2013, the said disclosure is not applicable.

™ There are no scheme of arrangements which have been approved by the Competent Authority in terms of sections 230 to 237 of
the Companies Act, 2013 during the reporting periods
(xi)

During the reporting periods, the Company does not have any loans or advances in the nature of loans either repayable on demand
or without specifying any terms or period of repayment granted to promoters, directors, KMPs and related parties as per the
definition of Companies Act, 2013,

xii

o The Company has not identified any transactions or balances in any reporting periods with companies whose name is struck off
under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of Companies Act, 1956.

(xii) There are no charge or satisfaction yvet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period by the company.

66 Events after reporting period

No significant adjusting event occurred between the balance sheet date and date of the approval of these financial statements by
the Board of Directors of the company requiring adjustment or disclosure.
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Previous year’s figures have been regrouped/ reclassified wherever necessary to correspond with the current year's classification/
disclosure.

All amounts disclosed In the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest million as per the requirements of
Schedule Ill, unless otherwise stated.

As per our report of even date attached
For and on behalf of the Board of Gandhar Oil Refinery (India) Limited

For Kallash Chand Jain & Co. \c},—}/
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 112318W Q_(‘L
o Ramesh Parekh
-t Chairman & Managing Director

DIN: 01108443 o/\

Samir Parekh Aslesh Parekh
Joint Managing Director Joint Managing Director
DIN: 02225839 DIN: 02225795
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Jayshree Soni
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